COTTAGE GROVE CITY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
APRIL 22, 2024

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Solesbee called the meeting to order at 7:01 pm in the Council Chambers at City Hall.

ROLL CALL / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

City Recorder Mindy Roberts called the roll. The following were

PRESENT IN THE Mayor Candace Solesbee, Councilors Alex Dreher, Greg Ervin,

COUNCIL CHAMBERS:  Mike Fleck, Dana Merryday, Chalice Savage and Jon Stinnett

PRESENT VIA

ZOOM WEBINAR:

COUNCIL ABSENT:

YOUTH

REPRESENTATIVE:

STAFF PRESENT IN City Manager Mike Sauerwein, Assistant City Manager

THE-COUNCIL Jake Boone, City Recorder Mindy Roberts, Public Works &

CHAMBERS: Development Director Faye Stewart, Police Chief Cory Chase and
Assistant City Planner Leni Crow

STAFF PRESENT

VIA ZOOM WEBINAR: Finance Director Roberta Likens

CITY ATTORNEY: Carrie Connelly

MEDIA PRESENT: KNND, The Chronicle

POLICE OFFICER SWEARING IN

Police Chief Cory Chase introduced newly hired Police Officer Luke Monahan and Dispatcher
Jessica Herrera and proceeded with the Swearing-In Ceremony for Officer Luke Monahan.

1 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024



PROCLAMATIONS

Mayor Solesbee read the Water Safety Month Proclamation aloud and presented it to Pool
Supervisor Shane Dye.

PRESENTATION

(a) Warren H. Daugherty Aquatic Center Report

Pool Supervisor Shane Dye presented the Aquatic Center Annual Report, utilizing a slide deck,
attached as Exhibit A. He shared his community, educational and background experiences,
statistics regarding pool use, costs and benefits to pool users, and opportunities in aquatics. He
acknowledged the importance of City financial support and said in order to maintain the current
rates for users, the City will need to increase support to $90,000.

Councilor Merryday shared a recent positive experience taking his Life Skills class to the pool.

(b) Legislative Update by Representative Charlie Conrad

Representative Charlie Conrad provided Council a summary of the legislative short session
including;:

Highlighted his representation of House District 12 and the area it encompasses.

Shared information regarding committees that he is appointed to.

Explained the differences of a short legislative session compared to a long session.

Shared the number of measures and bills submitted and those that passed.

¢ Explained two house bills that he put forward, HB 4043 and HB 4056, when they were
signed by the Governor and what they will accomplish.

e Shared efforts to secure capital funding for projects.

e Explained HB 4002, the projects it will be funding, including $3 million to Cottage
Grove to help with infrastructure for a housing project.

» Explained and answered questions regarding a number of key Senate Bills that were

passed and what they will support.

Council asked how to advocate funding for street improvements and projects like a Skate Park.
Representative Conrad shared that there are larger amounts of money for projects related to
capital projects such as water, infrastructure, housing and emergency management. He said
anytime a project can be linked to one or more of those areas, and the more a project is ready to
advance, it makes it easier for him to advocate for.

ITEMS ADDED TO THE AGENDA

None

2 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024



APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS

(a) Items not on the Agenda

Michael Garwood said he is in Cottage Grove visiting his mom and that she asked him to express
her concern for the conditions of the streets.

Aaron Cochran said although he is not a Cottage Grove resident, he is a VFW member and a
retired Oregon National Guardsmen who was once assigned to the Cottage Grove Armory. He
said he is interested in volunteering and contributing to the community and added that his
specific interest 1s to create a fitness area in parks.

(b) Action Items on the Agenda

None

PUBLIC HEARING

None
CONSENT AGENDA

(a) Approval of April 5, 2024 Agenda Session Minutes

(b) Approval of April 8, 2024 City Council Meeting Minutes

(c) Bike Month Proclamation

(d) Building Safety Month Proclamation

(e) Mental Health Awareness Month Proclamation

() National Cities. Towns and Villages Month Proclamation

(2) Resolution Amending the Fee Schedule Adopted by Ordinance No. 2361

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR
ERVIN TO REMOVE ITEM (G) FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND MOVE IT TO

ITEM (14) (A).

Mayor Solesbee announced the motion with a second and called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Mayor
Dreher Ervin Fleck Merryday | Savage Stinnett Solesbee

AYES X X X X X X X

NAYS

ABSTAIN

Motion carried.

3 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024




IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR
SAVAGE TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA.

Mayor Solesbee announced the motion with a second and called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Mayor
Dreher Ervin Fleck Merryday | Savage Stinnett Solesbee

AYES X X X X X X X

NAYS

ABSTAIN

Motion carried.

RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

(a) Resolution Adopting the 2023 Cottage Grove Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan
Assistant City Planner Leni Crow provided Council a three year history of the planning and
preparation for the Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan and shared the benefits of having the plan.
She said the plan has been reviewed by FEMA and the Oregon Office of Emergency
Management for compliance and once adopted by Council it would receive final approval.

Councilor Ervin highlighted scrivener’s errors, expressed concern about references to the City
having a taxi service and asked if the plan reflects changes made to the new floodplain maps.

Public Works and Development Director said the plan reflects what is currently in place and not
necessarily the new floodplain maps. He said at this point changes cannot be made to the
approved plan with the exception of minor changes like scrivener’s errors.

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO 2133.
Councilor Savage asked clarification regarding the expiration date of the plan.

Assistant City Planner responded that the end date is April 21, 2029.

Councilor Fleck called Point of Order and indicated the motion is being discussed without a
second.

COUNCILOR SAVAGE SECONDED THE MOTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO
2133.

Mayor Solesbee announced the motion with a second and called for discussion.

4 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024



Seeing none, Mayor Solesbee called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Counciler | Mayor
Dreher Ervin Fleck Merryday | Savage Stinnett Solesbee

AYES X X X X X X X

NAYS

ABSTAIN

Resolution No. 2133 Adopted.

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL

(a) Award of South R Street Right of Way Improvements Contract

Public Works and Development Director Faye Stewart explained the bid process, listed the
publications used to advertise and shared that nine bids were received ranging from $618,333.25
to $828,201.68. He said Pacific Excavation provided the low bid and it is recommended by the
City Engineer of Branch Engineering to award them the contract.

He explained the project and added that it would be funded from the collected System
Development fees.

Mayor Solesbee announced a Conflict of Interest. She said that her step son-in-law works for
Pacific Excavation and she will recuse herself from the discussion and the vote.

Mayor Solesbee left the Council Chambers.

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK THAT CITY COUNCIL AWARD THE
SOUTH R STREET RIGHT OF WAY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT TO PACIFIC
EXCAVATION AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE CONTRACT
AND ALL ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS.

Councilor Merryday proceeded to ask a question.

Councilor Fleck called Point of Order.

Public Works and Development Director Faye Stewart reiterated that after a motion is made
there must be a second before discussion can take place.

THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COUNCILOR SAVAGE.

Councilor Merryday asked if Pacific Excavation had done other projects for the City in the past.

5 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024



Public Works and Development Director responded that Pacific Excavation had completed

approximately five projects for the City and added that they did an excellent job on all of them.

Council President Greg Ervin announced the motion with a second and called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Mayor
Dreher Ervin Fleck Merryday | Savage Stinnett Solesbee

AYES X X X X X X

NAYS

ABSTAIN

Motion carried.

Mayor Solesbee returned to the Council Chambers.

(b)  Concerns from Council

Council reports, comments and discussion included:

e Councilor Savage questioned if there were plans to install a fitness park at Bohemia Park,
thanked Public Works and Development Director for working to get a basketball hoop
located at a park with a concrete slab, shared knowledge of a building vacancy tax in
other communities and reminded Council that she will be attending the NLC Board
Meeting in June.

Public Works and Development Director responded that different groups had held discussions in
the past regarding the creation of fitness parks and he said none of them had progressed past the
conceptual phase. He clarified that the basketball hoop being placed on the concrete slab is a
portable style at this time.

e Councilor Dreher announced that she attended Municipal Court on Thursday to witness
court proceedings, expressed interest in utilizing the County deflection program created
in response to Measure 110 reform, and reported on the League of Oregon Cities
Government Policy Committee meeting.

Police Chief Cory Chase shared that the deflection program will be defined by the County and
added that all Police Chiefs within the county will be involved in the discussions and process.

6 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024



e Councilor Fleck reported on the Lane Area Commission on Transportation (Lane ACT)
and Lane Regional Air Protection Agency (LRAPA) meetings and reminded Council that
a motion must be seconded before discussion can be held or the motion dies.

e Councilor Merryday expressed concern that the Homelessness Work Session on May 18,
is only scheduled for a half day and expressed interest in locating examples of how other
communities address vacant buildings.

City Manager Mike Sauerwein responded that he would like to see examples as to how other
cities have handled building vacancies. He added that Staff is prepared to hold a full day Work
Session on May 18 if that is what Council desires.

e Councilor Ervin expressed appreciation for meeting with the City Manager and Finance
Director to discuss the budget and said he looks forward to reviewing it as a Council. He
shared renewed interest in continuing Skate Park discussions and Councilor Merryday
proceeded by sharing that the YARG foundation had extended the grant period in order to
complete the community input.

e Mayor Solesbee asked if the information being shared at Executive Session ORS 192.660
(2) () to Consider Information or Records that are Exempt by Law from Public
Inspection had to be done in an Executive Session. She said that she believes there is a
benefit for the public to hear the discussions.

City Attorney Carrie Connelly responded that it would be Council’s privilege to waive. She
suggested that the Executive Session be held to consider the information and then Council could
decide if they wanted to waive their privilege.

City Recorder shared that five of the seven Council members had previewed the documents.

Mayor Solesbee suggested that the remaining Council members have an opportunity to preview
the documents and then they could make a decision to have an Executive Session or a public

meeting,

City Attorney responded that she prefers having a private discussion with Council first and then
Council could decide next steps. She added that waiving attorney-client privilege is not
something to take lightly and she would want to talk about the options.

Discussion was held to consider holding the scheduled Executive Session or postponing until all
Council members had previewed the documents.

Councilor Ervin asked if the documents that were previewed, are considered the Executive
Session. He expressed concern that if Council enters an Executive Session meeting, it is
restricting them and they cannot discuss things openly. He added that there was freedom to talk
about the subject matter prior to the confidential document.

7 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024



City Attorney clarified that each Councilor had been invited to review a privileged confidential
communication from attorney to client. She added that an individual Councilor does not have the
right to waive the privilege and the Executive Session was being held to discuss the contents of

the document.

Councilor Ervin clarified that the subject matter and the concerns raised are not exclusive to the
Executive Session or attorney-client privilege, but the attorney input on the matters is what
cannot be discussed.

Discussion continued and Council expressed varying opinions about holding the Executive
Session at tonight’s meeting as scheduled, reconsidering it for a later time or not having it at all.

Council reached a consensus to extend the meeting by thirty minutes to complete the business of
the regular meeting.

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER

(a) Report from City Manager

City Manager report included:

e Shared his positive experiences of being involved with the creation of two skate parks in
other communities.

o Shared the need to evaluate the process for scheduling reservations for City facilities.

e Announced that the Eugene Symphony is scheduled for July 22 and said Council will
need to consider rescheduling the Council meeting on that night.

e Announced that the President has signed the Emergency Proclamation regarding the ice
storm and that Staff is in the process of submitting the application for assistance.

e Shared the tentative agenda for the May 18 homelessness work session and offered the
opportunity for it to be a full day meeting.

Council expressed opinions regarding the desired length of time for the work session.

BUSINESS FROM CITY ATTORNEY

(a) Report from City Attorney

City Attorney Carrie Connelly clarified that the Council Rules do not require a motion to remove
an item for the Consent Agenda.

8 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024



(a)

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA

Resolution Amending the Fee Schedule Adopted by Ordinance No. 2361

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR FLECK AND SECONDED BY COUNCILOR
ERVIN TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2134.

Mayor Solesbee announced the motion with a second and called for discussion.

Seeing none she called the vote.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

VOTE Councilor | Counciler | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Councilor | Mayor
Dreher Ervin Fleck Merryday | Savage Stinnett Solesbee

AYES X X X X X X X

NAYS

ABSTAIN

Resolution No. 2134 adopted.

City Attorney informed Council that resolutions can be on the Consent Agenda but because this
resolution involved fees, removing it provided an opportunity for public comment.

Mayor Solesbee announced that Executive Session (b) was cancelled because there was no
content to share at this time.

Councilor Ervin asked if Executive Session (a) is necessary. He said the requested information
has been received and asked what else there is to do.

City Attorney responded that the Executive Session is not required. She reiterated that the
document is a confidential communication from attorney to client and if it is discussed, it would

need to be in an Executive Session.

Mayor Solesbee suggested that the remaining Councilors take the opportunity to read the
documents and then Council could decide if an Executive Session is needed.

City Attorney suggested that individual Councilors could report their desire to the City Manager.

Mayor Solesbee indicated there was a consensus to provide the remaining Councilors an
opportunity to review the documents and then Council would determine if an Executive Session

is desired.

9 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024



Councilor Dreher asked to clarify that Council can read the privileged material but cannot talk
about it, regardless if an Executive Session is held, because the material is privileged.

City Attorney said that is correct.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Mayor Solesbee adjourned the regular meeting of the City
Council at 9:26 pm.

The next regular City Council Meeting will be held May 13, 2024 at 7:00 pm in the Council
Chambers at City Hall.

Mindy gogerts, City Recorder

10 — Council Meeting Minutes 4/22/2024



losialadng jood
aAQ sueys

UOTIRIUISIIg
- 191ua) diyenby A119y8ne( ‘H uatrem

¥ 3TqTUxg




‘qol poob e op Asy] “Anunwiwon
941 JO SIequisw pue sjuspnis yum dn spew Jjeis jood
N0 woyy sbuiyy esayy Jo |je Buiop djay jo 10| e aAey |

sweiboid pue saakojdws 9yl JO ||e 8lenjeA e
Wes] WIms pue ojod ia1em AlsieA syl yoeo) e
491Ua) 8yl ejesadQ pue abeuepy e

J0STAISANS 11U JNenby a4y Sy

lojeladQ |ood payien e

‘Buiumoup sreuwie pue wims
01 8|doad Buiyoes} siom ayl Aw usagseyl e
sieah AreN Aw Buunp 10]oNJlsul WIMS AABN e
uelalan AneN tesh gz e
¢8 SH 8019 abeno) jo sienpelb e we _

®

‘punoIbNyoeg AR




$71qoJay enby

SU0SS3T WIMS Alunwiwon
WIMS UOl1BaI03Y

Uibuans pue yjem

sa|geq Ja1epm

Spleway

S19)BUS pUE SIBAOJ\
slazisenby

14D 1v 18Inb pue y9 1y

1IN0 31om ispuadapu

‘T00d
93] Je swiex3doid
Ayrunuwiuion

¥ K X X K K K K K K X

Wwims deT




'sAepung awos pue
uooultsyje Aepinies |ejusl jood Joy 9|ge|leAe si |00d

Nd00-CL-NV0E:8-1es

WdO0E:8-5%'9 INd00:Z L-NV0E:S-14

Wd 8-9 ‘NdP-€ Wd 00:ZL-WV 0€:2-4L
INdOE-8-0€'S ‘INd ¥-€ ‘INd L-INVOE:S-Pam
Nd00:8-9 ‘Wdt-€ ‘d 00:ZL-INV 0g:2-n1
Wd0E-8-0€'S Wd 00:Z L-AV 0€:S-IN

9@9M yoes sunoy
SL°LY Jo [B10] e Joj Ayunwiwog ay) 0} uado S| jood ay ]

asN
[004 Aytunuiuron




lood ay1 pazinn siaquiswi
Alunwwoo 1/9'9| £Z0z papus Jeak |easiy ay) 4o+

"1eah |eosyy
941 ur 06 03 syuow € yum ey ‘91 40 |e10) puelb e Jo

66G'C - 202 yolep
€¢0°C - 720z Aenigsy

¢09'L - ¥z0z Aenuer
LLO'Z - £20¢ loquwiaoaq

cyiuowr A1aas 1ood
oL E207 7360100 o[ ash Ajrunuwwio)

LLS'L - €20T JoquisAoN

¢L¥'L- €202 Joaquialdeg

9] WOI]J
o[doad Aueyy moy

LE0C - €202 1snbny
€0LZ - €20z AN




(4ose N 104 [e101 JO % L) 9/0°) 7¢0¢ Yaley

(Areniga 1o} |e101 J0 %8S) 621'L -4Z0Z Arenigey

(Kienuer 1oy e10} 0 %2S) v18 -yZ0Z Alenuer mﬁn—ﬂOE
AT9A9 1sowa o]
|ood ay3 8z||11n s1ojusS ‘sIBqIBL \Mp__ﬂﬁch_ww_ﬁw HM ._”OOQ QSH wmws OA\.—B




(000'06$) %L Aq 1oddns s1ayy ssealoul o) paau [jim
A9 sy} ‘'siequisw Alunwwo) 1oy sa1el ualno ulejuiew o

lue|d |edjueyoaw/|eoaisAyd soe|dsi/iedal o) S1IS0D) e

S0ueuUsjUlewW Jenbal U 100 pasessou] e

S9SEDIOUI 1800 A|ddns Jayio pue [eolweyy e
(suyouaq ‘eseasoul

abem wnuwijuiw) s1s09 jsuuosiad Ul 8seslou| e

¥20¢-€20¢ 10§ 51509 pardaloig

UsIA J8d 61°8S pled aney

PINom sisquisw Ayunwwiod ‘yoddns A1) INOYUM e
"MUSIA Jad

00'¥S 8Je |ood ay 1e sjenpiaipul 0} pableyosesay] e
‘Jood sy} sasn 1eyy

uos.ad A1aAs 1oy 80°ELS spuny 1oLsIqg [ooYyoS 8y | e
‘uosiad Jad ysia
1ad 6'$ 40 1500 e 18 Welboud Alunwwos e 10} jood

9yl sasn eyl uosiad yoes spuny Apualino Apayl e
HSIA

SI9QUUDTAT
Jad 85°LZS s! jood ay1 Buisn uosiad Jad 1S003y] e \MH._AH:EEOU - WHWOU

183\ 89S £202-2202 o1 103




‘uny Buiaey pue Buies siom swies) [IN} oM} pue
‘L 19quisda( 198w Aeal sy} Jo)ye S0I4yd20UId 0} JUSM |

'8¢-£¢ Atenuer jood 1no ul peyadwoo sal|lwey
119U} puB SIBWWIMS G9| 188l YOINA B1E1S By} 1Y

yBiusano Aeys Jo jany ‘Po0y4 Anq pue sassauisng
|e20| 01 06 Aoyl @19dwoo 0] aWwod Suieal Uusypn

'9A019 abenog o1 sjdoad sbulq jood oy

Joolu

VOWA @23e31S a3 se
[IeM Se suonnaduiod
SUTWITUIMS

[00YdS YSIH Y1
pa3soy am 1eaf s1yfy,




‘Buiyy 1ybu syy skemje 1ou
SswlswWos "op 031 sbuiyi Jay1o puly |jim Asuy ‘awi 1snuy
‘Alunyioddo ey sjdoad Bunok ino OAIB Juop am |

"JUBLUUOIIAUD 8)es
e ul Juswholus pue ‘uny ‘uonesldsy 1o} Auunyioddo
Ue aA0l9 abenon ui sjdoad Bunok SaAIb Bulwwims

‘9|doad BunoA u) Joireyaq sdjsy Buluwims
iA1MoInb pauses)
9ABY S1USpNIS 3y | "|ood 8y} 1e SU0ssSs| Bulwiwims

USXB1 9ABY UBIP|IY0 0L 2'L Jeak [easyy Jeak siy) tey og

8|y A1ajes Jerep wenodwi 1sow sy si
WIMS 01 moy ules)| si a|n1 A}o4eS J8lep | Jaquuinu ay |

"WIMS 0] MOy
UIe3] 9A0IL) 93e]]0)
UL SJuapnis 1y




'WiS31se J|3s s1s00q pue ‘Uoissaidap Buliemoy
poow Buiroidwi spnjour Buiwims 0O sljauaq [ejus|py

i

‘uoclieuipiood pue sladde ssoueyus pue sulsyed
dea|s sanoidw ‘sulydiopus sases|a. Bullwims

‘BUIWLR)S

§1s00q pue yibuans ssaoidwi ‘simsod pue 2aue|eq
S9dueyus Bulwwimg Apoq ainus sy S}J0M 1| 8snedaq
Ayyjeay sbun| pue 1ieay nok e deay sdjay Bulwwims

'Poob |99} noA saxew
}"Uieq e Jo Jamoys e Bupjel seije swes sy sjeay )|

¢Bulwims Jsye |99y nok Oop MOH

'T00d
ol Ul SUIIWIIMS
JO SjiJouag




"9|doad onenbe
paulen payniad 104 moj awi || ue je sj A1unos ing

Juswsabeuey onenby X

lolelado jood payilen

uononisul bulwwimg
Ayunpoddo Aseqiiy X WU.._H_.WSUA\
loponnsul flsjes Jerep ¢ .C”._” \MH._HHSHHOQQO
UOIBOUILI®D plenbay ¢ .HO “—o.— m W._” m.Hw.n.#_“_“_




‘S 4noA 1oy noA yuey |




